
 

1 

 

 

                  

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING   

Monday, August 29, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO 81230 

and via Zoom video/teleconferencing: 
   https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZwuduCtpzssH9KeTKgzMzZU0ikSZvjJzN1p 

 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To be an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin. 

 

5:30 p.m.  1. Call to Order 
 

5:31 p.m.  2.       Agenda Approval 
 

5:33 p.m.  3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed  

for discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board  member or 

citizen. 

• Approval of July 25, 2022 Meeting Minutes 

• Consideration of Operating Expenses 

• Consideration of Non-Operating Expenses  
 

5:40 p.m.  4. 2023 Budget 

• Discussion of Goals and Activities for 2023 

• Preliminary Estimate of Assessors’ Valuations 

 

5:45 p.m.  5. Presentation by Chris Sturm of the Colorado Water Conservation Board, 

“Wildfire Ready Watershed” 

 

6:15 p.m.  6. BREAK 
 

6:35 p.m.  7. Legal and Legislative Update 

 

6:45 p.m.  8.  Basin Water Supply Update 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZwuduCtpzssH9KeTKgzMzZU0ikSZvjJzN1p


 

2 

 

6:55 p.m. 9. General Manager and Staff/Committee Updates  

• Treasurer’s Report 

• Executive Committee Meeting Update 

• General Manager’s Update Miscellaneous 

• Grant Program Update 

o Jesse Kruthaupt Presentation on dam repairs at Vouga Reservoir  

• Watershed Management Planning Committee Update 

o August 10th Meeting Summary 

• Education and Outreach Committee Update 

o August 11th Meeting Summary 

• Taylor Local User’s Group Update 

o August 9th Meeting Summary 

• Wet Meadows Program Update 

• Scientific Endeavors Update 

• STOR Update 

• Colorado Water Congress Update 
 

8:05 p.m. 10. Miscellaneous Matters  

• Gunnison Energy Production - Solar Panels 

• Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet 

• Newspapers and Other Water Articles 
 

8:10    p.m. 11. Citizens Comments 
 

8:12  p.m. 12. Future Meetings 
 

8:15 p.m. 13. Summary of Meeting Action Items 
  

8:20 p.m. 14. Adjournment 
 

 

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  

All times are approximate.  Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are recorded, and action 

can be taken on any item. The Board may address individual agenda items at any time or in any order to 

accommodate the needs of the Board and the audience. Persons with special needs due to a disability are 

requested to call the District at (970) 641-6065 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org 

http://www.ugrwcd.org/


AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items



 

1 

 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Annual Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 

Monday, July 25, 2022 

 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) 

conducted its annual meeting on Monday, July 25, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. in the District office, 210 West 

Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO, 81230 and via Zoom video/teleconferencing. 

 

Board members present: Sara Bergstrom (via Zoom), Rosemary Carroll, Rebie Hazard, Stacy McPhail, 

Julie Nania (via Zoom), Bill Nesbitt, Michelle Pierce (via Zoom), John Perusek, Don Sabrowski and 

Andy Spann.   

 

Board members absent:  Joellen Fonken 

 

Others present: 

 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

Cheryl Cwelich, UGRWCD Watershed Program Coordinator 

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

Sue Uerling, UGRWCD Admin. Asst./Communications Support Specialist 

Jim Woodcock, Esty Ranch 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Board President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2.       Agenda Approval 

 

President Pierce noted that Item 6 – Executive Session should be removed from the agenda and she 

noted that under the Wet Meadows Program Update in Item 9, an action item to partner with the BLM is 

being added.  

 

Director Andy Spann moved and Director Rosemary Carroll seconded approval of the agenda as 

amended.  The motion carried. 

 

3. Consent Agenda Items  

 

 



 

2 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Stacy McPhail seconded approval of the consent agenda 

items with the minutes removed.  The motion carried. 

 

Director Rosemary Carroll wanted to clarify in the June 27, 2022 minutes under the Scientific 

Endeavors update (page 11 and 12) that nitrogen levels in the Slate River are low. 

 

Treasurer Bill Nesbitt asked that on page 9 of the June 27, 2022 minutes that the reference to Waddell 

and Reed be struck from the minutes and that the sentence instead read “Director Fonken asked if the 

District was still using LPL Financial and Treasurer Nesbitt said yes.” 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Sara Bergstrom seconded approval of the June 27, 2022 

minutes with the corrections noted above.  The motion carried. 

 

4. Legal and Legislative Issues 

 

General Counsel John McClow updated the Board on the Five-Step Plan submitted by the Upper 

Division States to the Bureau of Reclamation in response to their request to submit plans for reduction 

of consumptive use of two-to-four-million-acre feet of water.  (The Five Step Plan is as follows: (1) 

Seek amendment and reauthorization of the System Conservation Pilot Project legislation originally 

enacted in 2014. The amendment will provide for extension of the authorization and reporting periods to 

September 30, 2026, and September 30, 2027, respectively, and seek funding to support the program in 

the Upper Basin. Upon obtaining reauthorization, the necessary funding, and finalizing any required 

agreements, the Upper Division States intend to reactivate the program in the Upper Basin in 2023. (2) 

Commence development of a 2023 Drought Response Operations Plan (2023 Plan) in August 2022 with 

finalization in April 2023 consistent with the Drought Response Operations Plan Framework 

(Framework). A 2023 Plan must meet all the requirements of the Drought Response Operations 

Agreement and the Framework. These requirements include, but are not limited to, determining the 

effectiveness of any potential releases from upstream Initial Units to protect critical elevations at Glen 

Canyon Dam, and ensuring that the benefits provided to Glen Canyon Dam facilities and operations are 

preserved. (3) Consider an Upper Basin Demand Management program as interstate and intrastate 

investigations are completed. (4) Implement, in cooperation with Reclamation, the Bipartisan 

Infrastructure Law for Upper Basin Drought Contingency Plan funding to accelerate enhanced 

measurement, monitoring, and reporting infrastructure to improve water management tools across the 

Upper Division States. (5) Continue strict water management and administration within the available 

annual water supply in the Upper Division States, including implementation and expansion of intrastate 

water conservation programs and regulation and enforcement under the doctrine of prior appropriation.) 

 

 Counselor McClow noted that Lower Division states have not submitted any plans. The BOR’s deadline 

is August 16th. They have not yet been willing to talk seriously about reducing their use.  There was 

ensuing discussion about what could be done to make the lower states comply.  John said that the 



 

3 

 

Secretary of Interior has the right to cut off the supply to any water user in the Lower Division states.  

John noted that this is not the case with the Upper Divison states. The federal government has no 

authority to curtail water in the Upper Basin.  Reclamation could try to release additional water from 

CRSP reservoirs, but that would violate the Drought Response Operations Agreement, which is part of 

the five-step plan.  The only way this could change is if the federal government determined it was 

necessary as an emergency action. 

 

More questions were raised about what can be done to make the Lower Basin states comply and if the 

Upper Basin states are doing enough to remain in compliance with the compact.  John noted that there 

really isn’t much we can do in the Upper Basin as there is no more water to add to the system.  He noted 

that the District could choose to be part of a conservation pilot program or perhaps a demand 

management program but that right now, everything is pretty vague and so much of this will depend on 

hydrology.  He reiterated that “at this moment, our water users are protected because the Upper Basin 

states are in compliance with the compact.”  He noted that the BOR is going to have to come up with a 

professional, credible way of saying “this is your problem Lower Basin states and you need to fix it.” 

 

Director Don Sabrowski asked John if there was any update on the litigation of ownership of land under 

the Arkansas River as reported at the April 2022 UGRWCD Board Meeting.  John said that the 

appropriate petitions have been filed for review by the Supreme Court but that the court has not yet ruled 

on whether it will accept the case.  

 

5. Appointment of 2023 Budget Officer 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Andy Spann seconded the appointment of General 

Manager Sonja Chavez to serve as the budget officer for fiscal year 2023.  The motion carried. 

 

6. Basin Water Supply Update 

 

A Basin Water Supply update was included in the Board Packet.  Water Resource Specialist Beverly 

Richards said Hinsdale and Saguache counties have both gotten above average rain this month and the 

conditions of drought improved in these counties.  Most of Gunnison County has not received enough 

rain to change the drought conditions.  Beverly noted that they are predicting the monsoonal rains will 

continue for the next few weeks but that they are also predicting that summer conditions will run longer 

than normal with hot temperatures continuing into the next couple of months.  We remain in the La Niña 

weather pattern and this is not likely to change in the next several months.  Bev noted that reservoir 

storage in the Gunnison and combined San Juan/Dolores basins is at record lows.  The good news based 

on the Colorado River discussion is that the Colorado River basin storage is one of the highest in the 

state. Streamflows in our area continue to be well below the historical averages.   

 

7. BREAK 



 

4 

 

 

 

9. General Manager, Staff and Committee Updates   

 

Treasurer’s Report:  Board Treasurer Bill Nesbitt reported that he had checked with Gunnison Savings 

and Loan and locally, we would be looking at a one percent APR for renewing CD’s that have matured 

or will mature in the next few months.  Bill said he talked to our bond dealer and that currently rates for 

two-year notes are paying better than long-term bonds, which doesn’t make sense.  Plus, as the bond 

market moves, these investments could be called so Bill is thinking it might be a better investment to put 

$245,000 in a Synchrony Bank and American Express Bank certificate of deposit which are currently 

paying 3.4 and 3.3 APR respectively.  By keeping them at $245,000, even with interest earnings, we 

would remain under the $250,000 FDIC insurance limit.  President Pierce noted that he and General 

Manager Chavez do not need the Board’s authorization to purchase these investments.   

 

Approval of Audit – President Michelle Pierce noted that in Auditor Paul Miller’s letter accompanying 

the audit, he presented the District with a perfect and clean opinion.   

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Rebie Hazard seconded the approval of the financial 

audit for the fiscal year ended on December 31, 2021 as presented by Auditor Paul Miller.  The 

motion carried.  

 

General Manager’s Update:  General Manager Sonja Chavez referred to her update included in the 

packet. 

 

Gap Weather Radar Data - Sonja is concerned about the long-term acquisition of gap weather radar 

data across the west. She believes that directing only 20 percent of the allocated federal budget on 

weather radar data in the west is not acceptable as there are many gaps in weather data coverage across 

the west, especially for radar units that provide predictions of incoming weather and not just data on 

current conditions.  The weather radar unit proposed for Gunnison County has been delayed due to 

contractor availability but she believes it will be in place by this fall.  Sonja asked for the Board’s 

approval to bring this matter to the attention of Congress in collaboration with other western states.  She 

noted that the District should draft a memo in conjunction with the Colorado River District outlining our 

needs for this weather radar to submit to Congress in collaboration with other western states. President 

Pierce said that since there were no objections from any Board members, Sonja should continue to 

pursue government support for gap weather radar in the west. 

 

Director Rosemary Carroll asked if Sonja, on behalf of the District, would be stressing funding for one 

particular radar over the other and she said she would be focusing on the addition of funding to the 

National MESONET Program. Rosemary asked if it would be possible to get the Bureau of Reclamation 

on board to also seek funding since they are needing this data as well.  Sonja noted that as an agency of 



 

5 

 

the federal government, the BOR cannot lobby for funding but the District can emphasize the benefits to 

BOR forecasting.    

 

Colorado River District – Sonja referred to the River District recent meeting and said there was a lot of 

good information shared through a number of different the presentations.  She specifically noted that she 

got a lot out of Kevin Rein’s presentation and would like the Board to hear his presentation as well. 

 

Harmful Algal Bloom Study – A satellite image of Blue Mesa Reservoir showing the algal blooms, 

particularly in the Iola Basin, was presented from the July 15th data collection effort with the USGS and 

National Park Service (NPS).  Sonja said the District has also gotten some calls from the public with 

concerns about algae in local rivers. Those included the east river below WWTP and Gunnison River 

(Mark Schumacher) reported a red powdery substance at the rock and waterline south of Almont just 

upstream from Camp Gunnison.  Sonja offered that perhaps Katie Walton-Day from the USGS could 

conduct a float along the river to take some samples along the way and help identify any algae or 

chemicals encountered.   Sonja noted that these were also issues she would bring up at the next Water 

Quality Control Monitoring meeting. 

 

Flood Plain Mapping – Sonja reported that she is aware of changes to flood plain maps for Gunnison 

and Hinsdale Counties.  The last mapping was done in late 1980’s and with the improvements in 

technology, the flood plain maps have changed dramatically.  Director McPhail noted that during the 

closings on the Lazy K housing units, the new owners were told that they would need flood plain 

insurance at the closing and it was very expensive.  She noted that this insurance could limit access to 

affordable housing for some homeowners.     

 

Town of Crested Butte Water Source Protection Planning - Sonja spoke with Town of Crested Butte 

and Paul Hempel of the Colorado Rural Water Association. ,He has not been able to submit a grant on 

their behalf yet due to his busy schedule but he is scheduled to conduct a field tour in August. He will 

submit a grant application in September so that planning can commence. 

 

Visit by CO Department of Agriculture – General Manager Chavez and Director McPhail have been 

working with Bethan Howell from Commissioner Kate Greenburg’s office to schedule a visit to the area 

with the goal of having area producers meet in person with Stephanie and Kate to discuss succession, 

innovation, supply chain issues, marketing issues, drought resiliency and any other concerns.  Sonja 

encouraged Andy, Don and other producers to schedule some time to visit one-on-one with them during 

their visit on August 12th.   

 

Whitewater Park Meeting – At a recent meeting with Gunnison County and Whitewater Park user 

groups to discuss fixing the issues with drop #2 at the Gunnison Whitewater Park, the District was 

surprised to learn that a third proposal was put forward that would significantly alter drop #2 in  the park 

and reconfigure the existing drops and take out area to accommodate the new design.  Watershed 



 

6 

 

Program Coordinator Cheryl Cwelich said the new proposal came with a lot of new variables and was 

significantly more costly.  It was noted that Marlene Crosby put “a pause” on the whole project stating 

that Gunnison County so that she can work with the consultant on the timeline and engineering budget 

for the Whitewater Park.  Director McPhail noted that the Watershed Planning Committee is not in favor 

of spending the time and money on the third (new) proposal as it was presented. 

 

WMP Update – General Manager Chavez referenced the report provided in the packet and noted that 

the field season has been very busy. She commended Katie Jagt for the input she has provided during 

site visits and noted that Katie had concerns about Coldharbour’s design plans and will provide them 

with an assessment of her visit and recommendations on re-engineering their plans. Director Carroll 

asked if this would affect their grant timeline and it was noted that Coldharbour’s grant award was for 

planning only and that to date, the District has not entered into contracted with Coldharbour yet.  Once 

the contract is issued, they will have a year to meet their grant obligations.  

 

Grant Program Update – Water Resource Specialist Beverly Richards referred to her memo included 

in the packet and said that her update is that now all 2022 contracts requests are either in progress or 

have been completed.  Bev noted that due to a change in property ownership, one application that was 

funded in 2021 has been canceled as the original application is not ready to move forward due to a 

change in ownership.  A letter was written to the applicant (lessee) who was encouraged to submit an 

application in the future if the new owner was on board.  The total of that grant award was $9,600. 

 

Staff recommended to the Board that these funds be used to finish the Strand Ditch project which has 

been in flux for over two years now.  Director McPhail asked that the District’s records note that the 

applicant, Crested Butte Mountain Bike Association (CBMBA), did not uphold their terms of the grant 

contract, including (1) their application was materially incorrect compared to the bridge 

installation/location that was actually installed; (2) there was no communication with the primary water 

right holder; (3) communication with the District around trying to find a reasonable solution was not 

positive; (4) when the District proposed solutions to the issues, even the CBMBA essentially went mute, 

(5) and the U.S. Forest Service had previously threatened the landowner with legal action.  Stacy feels 

these points should be taken into consideration should CBMBA ever submit another grant application to 

the District in the future. After much discussion, it was determined that the Forest Service does have 

possession of the bridge, which essentially cost $5,000, the amount that the District granted to CBMBA, 

and therefore, sending CBMBA a letter demanding they return the grant funds would serve no purpose.  

Sonja noted that after this incident, the grant committee made significant changes to the grant 

application process to ensure that any water rights holder or landowner who might be affected by a grant 

project are fully aware and agree with the grant proposal and that the District now has more oversight in 

engineering and design.  Sonja said that the Forest Service is currently storing the bridge and is now 

saying they cannot meet their previous commitment to provide funds for materials.  Sonja wants the 

Board’s agreement for the District to move forward with the engineering and installation of the bridge 



 

7 

 

utilizing the $9,600 in grant funds being returned.  Director Carroll asked if the Board could see 

engineering plans for the new installation of the bridge.  Sonja agreed.   

 

Director Julie Nania noted that she is happy that the District has access to an engineer to help support 

District grant applications.   

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Rebie Hazard seconded that $9,600 from the canceled 

grant award be transferred to the General Manager’s discretionary funds line item to complete 

the Strand Ditch Bridge project in the fall of 2022. The motion carried. 

 

Wet Meadows Program Update - Watershed Programs Coordinator Cheryl Cwelich reported that there 

has been a lot of progress made on various ground projects and she’s pleased with the cooperation 

among the partners. 

 

General Manager Chavez said that there have been a couple of private landowners who expressed 

concerns that their water rights were being affected by wet meadows projects built upstream of their 

property in 2020 and 2021. These concerns are being addressed and the District will be following up to 

coordinate redesign of the restoration structures with the BLM. Counselor John McClow said he 

believes that some of the structures associated with wet meadows projects can impact a water right and 

thinks it is important for the state to provide some clear guidelines.  Sonja said that this is a statewide 

issue.  

 

On other matters, Cheryl said that the BLM has requested the District participate as a cooperating 

agency in the preparation of the Gunnison Sage-grouse Resource Management Plan Amendment/Draft 

Environmental Impact Statement, which will provide input on management plans for Gunnison sage-

grouse and sagebrush habitats managed by the BLM..  Director Bill Nesbitt asked if there would be any 

hard costs involved in being a cooperating agency with the BLM and Sonja answered that it will just be 

staff time most likely devoted to helping provide data and information. Director Julie Nania noted that it 

is important that the District provide input on this land management plan and thanked the staff for their 

prompt and thoughtful response. 

 

Director Andy Spann moved and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded authorizing staff to participate as 

a cooperating agency in providing input for the BLM Sage Grouse Resource Management Plan 

Update.  The motion carried.  

 

Taylor Local User’s Group Update - The July 8th Meeting Minutes were included in the Board Packet.  

TLUG Chair Don Sabrowski said he was happy to report that at the July 25th meeting this morning, there 

was a consensus among all TLUG representatives on flow recommendations.  Don said that according to 

the Stipulation for an “Average Year,” the end-of-year storage content is 70,000 acre- feet.  Don said 

that during the end of June and beginning of July, the forecast showed a loss of 10,000 acre-feet, which 



 

8 

 

meant flow recommendations had to be curtailed significantly to try to reach the 70,000 acre feet end of 

year content. Don noted that TLUG representative Ernie Cockrell agreed to not oppose an end of year 

storage content to 68,000 acre-feet and 83 cfs winter flow rate in order to help maintain streamflows at 

230 cfs through August 21.  Sonja noted that an agreement letter was signed by the Four Parties and Mr. 

Cockrell indicating that their approval of the reduction in end of year storage content was not precedent 

setting. 

 

Chairman Sabrowski also report that Dan Brauch of the CPW said the repairs to the outlet pipe at Spring 

Creek Reservoir are to begin on August 3rd, and CPW is expecting all work to be completed by the end 

of August. CPW would like to start filling Spring Creek Reservoir as soon as possible after completion 

of the outlet pipe repair and they understand that they have junior water right. They will attempt to fill it 

from natural rainfall and snowmelt through this year and winter/spring of 2023. 

 

The next TLUG meeting will be held Tuesday, August 9th at 11:00 AM.    

 

Education and Outreach – Please see the memorandum in the Board packet. 

 

Scientific Endeavors:  Director Carroll said she had no report this month. 

 

Gunnison Basin Roundtable – Director Bill Nesbitt said he attended the meeting on July 18th and that 

the materials for the meeting came out very late.  Bill said the watershed/wildfire update given by Chris 

Sturm of the CWCB was very insightful.  General Manager Chavez reported that Chris has been invited 

to address the Board on this topic at the August 29th Board meeting.  Bill feels that the Gunnison Basin 

is much further ahead than other basins with respect to wildfire assessment.   

 

STOR Update:  No report this month as Director Fonken was absent.  

 

10. Miscellaneous Matters 

 

Accountant Jill Steele presented the District with a piece of watercolor photography by Gregg Morin 

entitled “Gunnison River Wave” as a gift from the Gunnison River Festival for serving as the title 

sponsor of the festival. 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez gave the “last call” for Board members to contact the District if they 

wish to attend the Colorado Water Congress Conference in Steamboat Springs August 23-25.  Sonja said 

she is considering also taking a local ag producer as she feels they would get a lot out of the conference. 

 

Sonja asked if Board members would be interested in having a barbecue dinner out at the I Bar Ranch at 

the September meeting.  She said she would also like to invite elected officials, as well as town and 



 

9 

 

county planners for informal discussions around water issues like growth and development, etc.  The 

Board was agreeable to such a dinner.   

 

Sonja has been selected as Water Education Colorado’s “Emerging Water Leader” and will be presented 

her award on September 8th in Denver. Counselor McClow said tickets for the President’s Banquet are 

$150 each. 

 

11. Citizens Comments 

 

There were no citizens comments. 

 

12. Future Meetings 

 

A list of upcoming meetings was included in the Board Packet. 

 

13. Summary of Meeting Action Items 

 

Staff will make the requested changes to the minutes. 

 

General Manager Chavez will meet with Treasurer Nesbitt to discuss investment options for the District. 

 

Staff will look into scheduling a barbecue dinner for the Board and area leaders at the I Bar Ranch in 

September 

 

Sonja and Director McPhail will coordinate to encourage ag producers in the basin to meet one on one 

with Commissioner Greenburg during her August 12th. 

  

14. Adjournment 

   

Board President Michelle Pierce adjourned the regular Board meeting on July 25, 2022, at 7:48 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Michelle Pierce, President 









































AGENDA ITEM 4
2023 Budget



AGENDA ITEM 5 
Presentation by Chris Sturm, CWCB



AGENDA ITEM 6
BREAK



AGENDA ITEM 7

 Legal and Legislative Matters



AGENDA ITEM 8
Basin Water Supply



1 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist 

 
DATE: August 19, 2022 

 
SUBJECT: Basin Water Supply Information 
 

The information supplied as part of this memorandum is a monthly feature and includes information about 
drought conditions in the basin, streamflow, reservoir storage,  and reservoir operations.   
 
Drought Conditions: 
 
According to the Drought Monitor at drought.gov as of August 16, 2022, drought conditions have 
improved considerably throughout the state and is likely due to monsoon rains received through July and 
the first half of August. A total of 76% of the state is now experiencing no drought to Moderate (D1) 
conditions which is an increase from the 68% in the July report.  As shown in the map below, 24% of the 
state remains in Severe (D2) to Exceptional (D4) drought conditions.  This is an improvement from last 
month’s report which showed that 32% of the state was experiencing severe to exceptional drought 
conditions.  These changes to the drought monitor are likely due to considerable precipitation the state has 
seen since the middle June. 

 
 
 
 
As you can see from the map provided below, there is a chance of drought improvement or removal in a 



2 

substantial portion of the state including parts of Gunnison County, and all of Hinsdale and Saguache 
Counties by the end of August.   

 
 

  

Drought Conditions – Gunnison County 

Drought conditions in Gunnison County have improved since the July report.  As of August 16, 2022, 91% 
of the county is experiencing Abnormally Dry (D0) or Moderate (D1) conditions and only 9% is 
experiencing Severe (D2) drought conditions, which is a substantial decrease in the Severe category, as this 
was only 66% in July.  The difference since last month is shown in the table, and a current drought monitor 
map is provided below.   
 
Drought Conditions – Gunnison County percentage (August 16 vs July 5) 

Date None D0 D1 D2 D3 D4 

August 16, 2022 0 3.51 87.55 8.94 0 0 
July 5, 2022 0 3.77 35.66 60.57 0 0 
Difference 0 -.26 +51.89 -51.63 0 0 

 

 



3 

 

Also included is the August outlook for drought conditions in Gunnison County, see map below.  This map 
shows that in almost half of the county, drought removal is likely by the end of the month. 

 

 



4 

 

The change in conditions is due entirely to monsoon precipitation that has continued since the last report.  
The Drought.gov website indicates that this has been the 41st wettest July on record for the county and the 
area is .35 inches above normal for the 128-year historical record.  Below is the 30-day precipitation map 
dated August 12, 2022, where precipitation amounts ranged from 25-150% of normal in the county.  This 
data does not include severe rainstorms that dropped nearly 1” of rain in the rain gage at the District offices 
since August 12th.   



5 

 

Also included is the Evaporative Demand Drought Index map below.  This map shows that the entire 
county is now in either W3 to W4 wet conditions which is a substantial decrease in evaporative demand.  
Periods of high evporative demand are connected to droughts and increased fire danger.  As evaporation 
decreases, soil moisture increases and fire danger decreases. 

 



6 

Drought Conditions – Hinsdale County  

Drought conditions in Hinsdale County have improved significantly since the July report.  As of August 
16, 2022, 100% of the county is experiencing Abnormally Dry (D0) or Moderate (D1) conditions.  On July 
5th nearly the entire county (98%) was experiencing Severe (D2) drought conditions.  These conditions did 
improve by July 12th where 100% of the county was in moderate conditions. The difference from July 5th to 
August 16th, is shown in the table, and a current drought monitor map is provided below.   
 
Drought Conditions – Hinsdale County percentage (August 16 vs July 5) 

Date None D0 D1 D2 D3 D4 

August 16, 2022 0 54.98 45.02 0 0 0 
July 5, 2022 0 0 1.71 98.29 0 0 
Difference 0 +54.98 +43.31 -98.29 0 0 

 
 

 

Also included is the August outlook for drought conditions in Hinsdale County, see map below.  This map 
indicates that in the entire county, drought removal is likely by the end of the month. 



7 

 
 

The change in conditions is due entirely to monsoon precipitation that has continued since the last report.  
The Drought.gov website indicates that this has been the 9th wettest July on record for the county and the 
area is 2.04 inches above normal for the 128-year historical record.  Below is the 30-day precipitation map 
dated August 12, 2022, where precipitation amounts ranged from 100-200% of normal in the county.   

 



8 

Also included is the Evaporative Demand Drought Index map below.  This map shows that the entire 
county is now in either W3 to W4 wet conditions which is a substantial decrease in evaporative demand.   

 

Drought Conditions – Saguache County 

Drought conditions in Saguache County have also improved since the July report.  As of August 16, 100% 
of the county is now in Abnormally Dry and Moderate (D1) drought conditions.  In July, 50% of the 
county was in Severe (D2).  The difference in the 30-day conditions is reflected in the table provided 
below. The difference from July 5th is shown in the table, and a current drought monitor map is provided 
below.   
 
Drought Conditions – Saguache County percentage (August 16 vs July 5) 

Date None D0 D1 D2 D3 D4 

August 16, 2022 0 64.28 35.72 0 0 0 
July 5, 2022 0 1.29 47.96 50.75 0 0 
Difference 0 +62.99 -12.24 -50.75 0 0 

 



9 

 
 

Below you will find the August outlook for drought conditions in Saguache County, see map below.  This 
map indicates that in almost the entire county, drought removal is likely by the end of the month. 

 



10 

 
 

The change in conditions is due entirely to monsoon precipitation that has continued since the last report.  
The Drought.gov website indicates that this has been the 21st wettest July on record for the county and the 
area is .82 inches above normal for the 128-year historical record.  Below is the 30-day precipitation map 
dated August 12, 2022, where precipitation amounts ranged from 50-200% of normal in the county. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



11 

The Evaporative Demand Drought Index map for Saguache County is below.  This map shows that the 
entire county is now in either W3 to W4 wet conditions which is a substantial decrease in evaporative 
demand.   

 

 
 
Streamflow 
 
Recent precipitation has helped somewhat with streamflow in the Upper Gunnison basin, as shown in the 
table provided below.  The area with the greatest increase is Tomichi Creek and Gunnison River below 
Gunnison at County Road 32 (Tomichi Creek flows into the Gunnison River just upstream of this gage). At 
the time of this report, the Gunnison River gauge at CR 32 was flowing at 764 cfs, which is nearly a 200 
cfs increase. 
 
Even though streamflows are improved from last month’s report, many of the gages still indicate that flows 
are below the historical average.  In addition, the increased flows have not necessarily improved reservoir 
storage conditions.  Blue Mesa continues to decline from its max fill of 48% to 42% at the time of this 
report preparation. 



12 

 
 
 

Station Name 
 

July 14 (cfs) August 18 (cfs) 
Historical 
Average  

August 18 (cfs) 
Gunnison River near Gunnison 544 566 670 
Gunnison River at Gunnison Whitewater Park 589 538 546 
Tomichi Creek at Sargent’s 47 37 37 
Tomichi Creek at Gunnison 74 239 147 
Taylor River at Taylor Park 96 76 72 
Taylor River blw Taylor Park 248 231 345 
Taylor River at Almont 357 308 404 
Slate River abv Baxter Gulch 65 28 30 
East River blw Cement Creek 193 96 156 
East River at Almont 259 151 203 
Lake Fork blw Lake San Cristobal 71 77 58 
Henson Creek at Lake City 78 79 69 
Lake Fork at Gateview 166 186 182 

Reservoir Storage 

As of August 17, reservoir storage in the entire Gunnison Basin is at 79% of full.  The reservoirs in the 
Upper Gunnison Basin - Taylor and Blue Mesa - are at 69% and 42%, respectively.  The tea-cup diagram 
for the Gunnison Basin is provided below.    

 



13 

Reservoir storage for the Upper Colorado River Basin is currently at 64% of full, which is a slight decrease 
from last month, and is broken down below: 

• Flaming Gorge – 75% full 
• Fontenelle – 95% full 
• Morrow Point – 95% full 
• Blue Mesa – 42% full 
• Navajo – 55% full 
• Lake Powell – 26% full 

These amounts are reflected in the tea-cup diagram provided below.   

 

 



14 

Aspinall Unit Operations 

The following update was provided by the Bureau of Reclamation (BOR)and is dated August 11, 2022.   

The unregulated inflow volume in April-July was 430,000 acre-feet which is 68% of average, the historical 
average for that timeframe is approximately 722,000 acre-feet.  The actual maximum fill for the Blue Mesa 
was 391,000 acre-feet which is 48% of average.  Currently, Blue Mesa is at 351,430 acre-feet which is 
42% full as shown in the teacup diagram provide above. The end of year content (12/31) is forecasted to be 
282,000 acre-feet which is 34% full. 

As per the update, releases from Crystal Dam are approximately 1,550 cfs.  In a subsequent update 
received August 17, these releases will be reduced to 1,450 cfs as rainfall has helped put river flows above 
the baseflow target of 900 cfs on the lower Gunnison River.   River flows are expected to continue at or 
above the baseflow target for the foreseeable future.  Gunnison Tunnel diversions are approximately 1,050 
cfs.  Flows in the Gunnison River in the Black Canyon are being maintained at 550 cfs but may decrease to 
450 cfs due to the release change on August 18.  Flows in the Gunnison River at the Whitewater gage near 
Grand Junction, are approximately 1,100 cfs.   

Taylor Park Reservoir Operations: 

In the Board packet, you will find the August 1, Taylor Park Reservoir operations using the August 1 
forecast from the Colorado Basin River Forecast Center (CBRFC). The Taylor Local Users Group (TLUG) 
decided agreed to reduce releases to 230 cfs and to try to maintain that level through September 5th for the 
benefit of commercial rafting, floating, and fishing and agricultural users.  This would result in an end-of-
year storage content of 68,500 AF in Taylor Reservoir. After September 5th, Reclamation would begin 
stepping-down releases by 25 cfs every 48 hours until reaching the calculated winter flow target of 83 cfs.  
The TLUG decided that they would meet again after August 15th, if the forecast showed a decline in 
hydrology.  

On August 17, the BOR indicated that due to recent precipitation, the CBRFC was predicting a slight 
improvement in the forecasted inflow volume to Taylor Park Reservoir so releases are anticipated to 
remain at the current level of 230 cfs through the Labor Day weekend. 

The next TLUG meeting is scheduled for September 8, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. 

Lake San Cristobal Update: 

The August 18 storage elevation for Lake San Cristobal was 8,995.18 feet which is 97% full and is down 
slightly from the July reading of 8,995.25.  At the time of this report, reservoir releases were 77 cfs and the 
flows at the Lake Fork at Gateview gage are 186 cfs.  

Lake Powell Update: 
 
The August 16, 2022, update for Glen Canyon Dam Operations is taken from the BOR website. 

The August 2022 24-Month Study projects the January 1, 2023, Lake Powell elevation to be less than 
3,525 feet. Consistent with Section 6.D.1 of the Interim Guidelines, Lake Powell’s operations in water year 



15 

2023 will be governed by the Lower Elevation Balancing Tier (LEBT) with an initial projected release 
volume of 7.00 million acre-feet (maf), this is shown in the graph below. 

  

Because the 2022 operations were designed to protect critical elevations at Lake Powell, Reclamation will 
implement Lower Elevation Balancing Tier Operations in a way that continues to protect critical elevations 
or preserves the benefits of the 2022 operations to protect Lake Powell, in water year 2023. Specifically, 
The August 24-Monthy Study modeled operations in WY 2023 as follows: 

• The Glen Canyon Dam annual release has initially been set to 7.00 maf, and in April 2023 
Reclamation will evaluate hydrologic conditions to determine if balancing releases may be 
appropriate under the conditions established in the 2007 Interim Guidelines; 

• Balancing releases will be limited (with a minimum of 7.00 maf) to protect Lake Powell from 
declining below elevation 3,525 feet at the end of December 2023; 

• Balancing releases will take into account operational neutrality of the 0.480 maf that was retained 
in Lake Powell under the May 2022 action. Any Lake Powell balancing release volume will be 
calculated as if the 0.480 maf had been delivered to Lake Mead in WY 2022; and 

• The modeling approach for WY 2023 will apply to WY 2024. 

Reclamation will continue to carefully monitor hydrologic and operational conditions and assess the need 
for additional responsive actions and/or changes to operations. Reclamation will continue to consult with 
the Basin States, Basin Tribes, the Republic of Mexico and other partners on Colorado River operations to 
consider and determine whether additional measures should be taken to further enhance the preservation of 

https://www.usbr.gov/uc/DocLibrary/Plans/20220503-2022DROA-GlenCanyonDamOperationsDecisionLetter-508-DOI.pdf.


16 

these benefits, as well as recovery protocols, including those of future protective measures for both Lakes 
Powell and Mead. 

Lake Powell Current Operations 

Based on the current forecast of 5.96 maf unregulated inflow for water year 2022, the August 24-Month 
Study projects Lake Powell elevation will end water year 2022 near 3,528.64 feet with approximately 5.76 
maf in storage which is 25% percent of capacity.  

Lake Powell Future Operations 

The August 3, 2022, CBRFC forecast for WY 2023 unregulated inflow to Lake Powell projects the most 
probable (median) unregulated inflow volume will be 8.30 million maf which is 86% of average. The range 
includes a minimum probable of 4.70 maf which is 49% of average, to a maximum probable of 15.70 maf 
or 163% of average. There is a 10% chance that inflows could be higher than the current maximum 
probable forecast as well as a 10% percent chance that inflows could be lower than the minimum probable 
forecast. This would mean that Lake Powell elevation will end water year 2023 near 3,526.65 feet 
elevation with approximately 6.24 maf in storage which is 27% of capacity. Projections of minimum and 
maximum elevation are 3,495.03 feet and 3,589.27 feet, respectively.  

Based upon this data, the anticipated annual release volume from Lake Powell during WY 2023 will be 
7.00 maf under the LEBT. This will balance the contents between Powell and Mead with annual release 
volumes from Glen Canyon Dam between 7.00 and 9.50 maf as determined under Section 6.D.1 and 7.D of 
the Interim Guidelines. 

 

Keep on Rain Dancing!  

https://www.usbr.gov/uc/water/crsp/studies/24Month_08.pdf
https://www.usbr.gov/uc/water/crsp/studies/24Month_08.pdf


AGENDA ITEM 9
General Manager and Committee Reports



AGENDA ITEM 9
Treasurer's Report



AGENDA ITEM 9
Executive Committee Update



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   UGRWCD Board of Directors  

FROM:  Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

DATE:  August 21, 2022  

SUBJECT:  Treasurer, General Manager, and Committee Updates 

 

I. Treasurer’s Report (Director Nesbitt) 

 

II. Executive Committee Meeting Update (Director Pierce) 

 

Director Pierce will provide a verbal update to the Board of Directors from the Executive 

Committee meeting held on July 27th. 

 

III. General Manager’s Report 

 

A. Miscellaneous Updates 

 

A.1 Upper Gunnison Basin Cloud Seeding Program 

The Upper Gunnison District contracts with North American Weather Consultants 

(NAWC) to carry out the Upper Gunnison Watershed Cloud Seeding Program. A permit 

is required to modify weather in Colorado. All cloud seeding activities are regulated and 

permitted by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources under the authority of the 

Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB). The Colorado Water Conservation Board 

administers the state’s cloud seeding program, providing annual funding and issuing 

permits.  The Upper Gunnison’s cloud seeding permit is up for renewal this year. 

Permitting is a responsibility of the contractor (NAWC). 

 

Staff is cooperating with the CWCB and NAWC in the permit renewal process.  The 

District, CWCB, and NAWC are currently evaluating an adjustment to our actual 

cloudseeding boundary of influence which would result in our being granted a 5 year 

permit. 

 

In 2021 the District established a manually operated cloud seeding site near Black Mesa 

as the site evaluation showed strong performance potential and covered a needed and 

highly desired area within our cloudseeding program boundary.  Manually operated sites 

require a local individual or group to operate the seeding machine, and unfortunately it 

just didn’t work very well.   

 



The District, CWCB and NAWC still believe this location could be very beneficial in 

terms of water production potential. We would like to construct a remote seeding 

generator and the existing landowner is still willing to work with us to have an 

established site on their property.  Preliminary estimates for the remote seeder 

infrastructure are estimated to be approximately $50,000. We will be discussing with 

CWCB and NAWC various options for outside funding to help support infrastructure 

costs. 

 

In addition, once the gap weather radar site is functional and if we are successful in 

getting the National Mesonet Program to purchase and process the data coming from the 

radar site via the National Weather Service, we could tie our basin’s remote generators 

(Irwin and Black Mesa) to the gap radar site.  This would increase our seeding success 

and we would no longer have to depend on unreliable and incomplete information 

coming from the Grand Junction Weather Service. We could also decommission the 

remote icing meter near the summit of Mt. Crested Butte which receives annual funding 

support in the amount of $10,000 from the CWCB and reallocate it to the annual O&M of 

the Black Mesa Remote Seeding Generator. 

 

In order to get the site up and running before snow flies this fall/winter of 2022, it may be 

necessary for the board to approve additional expenditure under our cloud seeding 

program. Ms. Richards is serving as our staff lead on Cloud Seeding. She and the General 

Manager hope to be able to update the Board with additional information at our August 

29th meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Support the concept of adding a remote cloud seeding generator at Black Mesa and direct 

staff to continue to explore funding support with our program partners for infrastructure, 

and annual O&M and bring a funding proposal back to the Board as soon as possible.  

 

A.2. Gap Weather Radar Update 

The General Manager continues to work with Western States Water Partnership (WSWP) 

and others to work with our congressional delegation to secure additional funding for the 

National MesoNet Program for the specific purpose of purchasing gap weather radar data 

in the Colorado River Basin.   No updates at this time. 

 

In last month’s update, staff informed the Board that Advanced Radar Company (ARC)  

was having difficulty with the Montrose contractor who had provided a bid to ARC and 

which ARC had accepted.  Staff was able to connect ARC with a local contractor and at 

last check the contractor had submitted a bid.  Staff is trying to connect with ARC to see 

if that bid has been accepted and if there is an associated construction timeline. We hope 

to provide an additional update at the August 29th Board Meeting. 

 



A.3 Gunnison County Board of County Commissioner (BOCC) Update 

General Counsel McClow and Water Resource Specialist Richards gave a water update to 

the Gunnison BOCC. There was good conversation, lots of questions that staff were able 

to address, and good press coverage.   

 

A.4. Harmful Algal Bloom Grant Request to the Community Funding Partnership (CFP) 

Staff requested an update from Amy Moyer (CRWCD CFP Director) on the HAB’s grant 

request. Ms. Moyer indicated that they had been very busy processing Accelerator Grants, 

had staff on vacation and were a bit delayed.  She hopes to be able to give District a better 

update in a couple of weeks. 

 

A.5. Senator Michael Bennet Public Listening Session: 2023 Farm Bill 

General Manager Chavez attended an August 18 Public Listening Session in Hotchkiss, 

Colorado, arranged by staff of Senator Michael Bennet.  The purpose of the session was to 

obtain public input on proposals for changes in the 2023 Farm Bill.  The following input 

was given on behalf of UGRWCD constituents: 

• Need for Farm Bill to address needs of small scale off-channel irrigation storage 

facilities (e.g., less than 2,000 AF) 

• Need to address staffing issues in the Montrose/Delta regional NRCS office. They 

just lost their only engineer. 

• Allow the program to pay for installation of utilities that provide for access to three-

phase electricity to operate pumping system for on-farm irrigation efficiency 

measures. 

• Encourage farmers and ranchers to utilize solar by creating mechanisms through 

which they can sell excess power generated back to local co-ops or electric 

associations. 

• Include gap weather radar as associated drought response and water related 

infrastructure under the Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention Act (PL-566). 

• Make it easier to use Farm Bill Program for improving rangeland forage through 

programs like Wet Meadow Restoration on federal lands. 

• Get rid of practice payments that do not keep up with inflation or the multi-year 

delays caused by the lack of local NRCS personnel to plan and design projects. 

Instead, allow applicants to rely on Lump Sum or Engineer’ss Estimates of 

Probable Cost to determine cost share for projects. 

 

Other input from basin ranchers attending listening session: 

• Provide programs and better support for beginning farmers and ranchers. Existing 

programs are bias toward produce farmers versus ranchers involved in livestock 

production. 

• Create good provisions for addressing the need for vegetation management in our 

forests and watersheds including grazing practices. 

 

 



 

B. Grant Program Update & Presentation  

 

B.1. At the request of the District Grant Committee, Watershed Science Design (WSD, Katie 

Jagt) and Round River Design (RRD, Michael Blazewicz) conducted a preliminary geo-

fluvial assessment and review of the 2022 Coldharbour Stream & Wetland Restoration 

Project UGRWCD Grant Proposal. Overall, the findings re-affirm staff and Grant Committee 

concerns about the proposal which are: 

1) The proposal attempts to address the symptoms but not the causes of degradation in 

the stream reach; 

2) The proposal and proposed design have significant constructability issues; 

3) There are inconsistent stated goals and confusion in the use of terminology used in 

river management and how those relate to project goals; 

4) Goals are not reflected well in the conceptual design presented to WSD; and 

5) The applicant needs to focus on starting with an alternatives analysis and conceptual 

design rather than a robust/full hydrologic analysis for their project and the 

appropriate technical expert should have skills in geo-fluvial morphology and design. 

There are significant issues with the stretch of river adjacent to the Highway 50.  This is an 

excellent reach for evaluation of restoring the river into its natural channel (back to the area 

near the abandoned railroad grade) and doing floodplain restoration, but it’s critical for the 

applicant to understand the underlying causes of stream degradation they are seeing in order 

to implement projects that support overall restoration of stream function and so that they 

don’t make an existing problem worse.  This project will also require significant involvement 

from CDOT and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  

The $15,000 budget identified in the proposal or pre-feasibility engineering should be 

sufficient for this first phase of proposed work. 

Ms. Richards has sent a letter to the applicant, who has been provided with a copy of the 

report, indicating that a contract for the $7,500 District Grant Award is contingent upon 

hiring the appropriate technical expert to conduct an alternatives analysis and preliminary 

geo-fluvial design report.  

 

B.2. Brief Presentation by Jesse Kruthaupt (Trout Unlimited): 2020 Vouga Reservoir 

Dam Restoration & Rehabilitation Project – R&K Staheli Farms 

 

C. Watershed Management Planning (WMP) Update 

 

Below is a quick summary of activities to date.  Please also see attached August 10, 2022, 

meeting minutes. 

 

C.1.Public Presentations: State of the Colorado River Basin & Upper Gunnison 

Basin Water Supply Assessment.  UGRWCD General Counsel, General Manager and 



Consultants are working on preparing a public presentation to be given at our September 

Board meeting which we hope to conduct at the I Bar Ranch (TBD).  

 

C.2. Watershed & Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Staff is reviewing the final report from JW Associates. We hope to make the report public 

by the end of September or beginning of October. 

 

C.3. Geo-Fluvial Assessments 

Katie Jagt (Watershed Science Design or WSD) has preliminary maps and ideas for 

implementation projects associated with her geo-fluvial assessments. Staff hopes to 

organize a WMP meeting with Katie in September in order to provide feedback and 

input. 

 

C.4. Agricultural Assessments 

Agricultural assessments continue this field season. We anticipate completing 

approximately fifteen to twenty assessments this season.  Our consultant also continues to 

assist with development of preliminary engineering and cost estimation on high priority 

projects as a service to our constituents. In all, we have experienced over a 95% success 

rate in assessed projects moving to construction.  In addition, interim and final 

engineering inspections on more complicated projects are of great value to the District 

and applicants. 

 

Staff is considering a potential Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention Act (Public 

Law 83-566) grant application to support agricultural irrigation delivery system work in 

the Ohio Creek basin and other watershed activities (e.g., practices or measures which 

conserve and develop the soil, water, woodland, wildlife, energy, and recreation 

resources and enhanced water quality of lands within a watershed). The Declaration 

Policy is as follows: Erosion, floodwater, and sediment damages in the watersheds of the 

rivers and streams of the United States, causing loss of life and damage to property, 

constitute a menace to the national welfare; and it is the sense of Congress that the 

Federal Government should cooperate with States and their political subdivisions, soil or 

water conservation districts, flood prevention or control districts, and other local public 

agencies for the purpose of preventing such damages, of furthering the conservation, 

development, utilization, and disposal of water, and the conservation and utilization of 

land and thereby of preserving, protecting, and improving the Nation's land and water 

resources and the quality of the environment. 

 

There may be funding available from the Colorado Agricultural Water Alliance (CAWA) 

for hiring a grant writer.  Staff will update the Board if and when any formal decision is 

made. 

 

D. Education & Outreach Committee Update 



A verbal update will be given by Chairwoman Bergstrom.  The August 11th meeting 

summary has also been included in the meeting packet.  

 

E. Taylor Local Users Group (Director Sabrowski) 

A verbal update will be given by Director Sabrowski (TLUG Chair). August 9th meeting 

minutes attached. The August 17th TLUG Note to File identifies continuation of the 230 cfs 

release from Taylor through September 5th as planned due to improving hydrology and 

provided that inflow projections hold and reservoir storage stays above the 68,200 AF, Four 

Parties approved, end of year October 31, 2022 storage content. 

 

F. Wet Meadows Update (Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator) 

    See Wet Meadows Program Memorandum. 

 

G. Scientific Endeavors Update (Director Carroll) 

 

H. STOR Committee Update (Director Fonken) 

 

I. 2022 Colorado Water Congress Update from Staff and Directors 

 

Directors and staff will give the Board a summary of take-aways from the 2022 Colorado 

Water Congress (CWC) Summer Convention. 

 

In addition, the UGRWCD was just recently asked to give joint testimony to the State of 

Colorado Water Resource and Agricultural Review Committee at CWC regarding our ten 

years of experience as a water conservancy district with the Wet Meadows and Riparian 

Restoration Resiliency Building Program. General Manager Chavez will be testifying along 

with Abby Burke who is the Western Rivers Regional Manager for Audubon of the Rockies. 



1 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Upper Gunnison Basin Water Quality Monitoring Program 

DATE: August 16, 2022 

SUBJECT: Summary of Water Quality Monitoring Program Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Upper Gunnison Basin Water Quality & Surface Monitoring Program 
(UGWQMP) stakeholder group met on August 16, 2022 to review outcomes 
from the program for 2021-2022. Introductions were made and the following 
people were in attendance.   

UGRWCD: Sonja Chavez, Beverly Richards, Cheryl Cwelich, Jill Steele, and Sue 
Uerling; Ashley Bembenek (CCWC), Julie Nania (HCCA), Christian Robertson 
(CBSMD, Via Zoom),  Mike Rogers (City of Gunnison, via Zoom); and USGS: 
Trish Solberg, Bryan Moore, and Steve Anders. 

Review of Meeting Agenda 

There were no changes to the agenda as presented. 

Brief History of Upper Gunnison Water Quality Monitoring Program 

This program initially began as a NAWQA USGS stream gaging activity in the 
Upper Gunnison basin and evolved into a basin-wide partnership with multiple 
local entities contributing financially to the program.  The program has been in 
place for over twenty years and is considered a trendsetter and model for 
cooperation among community stakeholders and has been adopted by other 
entities across the state. 

Items for Discussion: 

Agenda topics included USGS program updates, local water quality updates, 
NGWOS updates, budget for 2023, and additional monitoring needs.  As a 
result of these discussions the following information was provided.  

USGS Program Update 

USGS provided an overview of the Upper Gunnison JFA and NGWOS programs.  
Bryan Moore, Supervisory Hydrologic Technician, provided information about 
the surface water side of data collection.  In his presentation he provided 
information about the 11 existing coop stream gages that are part of the long-
term trend monitoring program in the Upper Gunnison basin.  This included 
information about the two newest gages on Willow Creek and Texas Creek 
above Taylor Park Reservoir installed under the NGWOS Program. 



2 

Bryan then described USGS operation and maintenance work to maintain 
accurate measurement of streamflow as well as verification of all data 
throughout the year. Sometimes instability occurs in the monitoring devices 
which can necessitate verification with from additional measurements.  When 
anomalies occur, USGS may have to make additional visits in order to evaluate 
equipment and make sensor corrections.  Any data collected by these gages is 
published on USGS data collection platforms including the USGS Water Watch 
and USGS Water Dashboard. 

Trish Solberg, Supervisory Hydrologic Technician, provided an overview of the 
Upper Gunnison basin gage sites within the District boundaries.  As stated 
above, there are a total of eleven coop stream gages.  These include: 

o Taylor River at Taylor Park 
o Slate River above Baxter Gulch 
o East River below Cement Creek 
o Ohio Creek above mouth 
o Tomichi Creek at Sargents 
o Coal Creek above McCormick Ditch 
o Gunnison River at Gunnison Whitewater Park 
o Gunnison River at County Road 32 
o Ohio Creek near Baldwin 
o Lake Fork below Lake San Cristobal 
o Henson Creek at Lake City 

 
• Five of these are funded by outside groups (Streamflow Gaging) 

o Taylor River at Taylor Park – BOR and CRWCD 
o Taylor River at Almont - USGS 
o East River at Almont – US Department of Energy 
o Gunnison River near Gunnison - USGS 
o Elk Creek at Coal Creek - EPA 

 
• Two of these are funded through NGWOS (Streamflow Gaging) 

o Texas Creek  
o Willow Creek 

 
• In addition to stream gaging, all of the following sites include discrete 

water quality field sampling: 
o Taylor River at Taylor Park 
o Slate River above Baxter Gulch 
o East River below Cement Creek 
o Ohio Creek above mouth 
o Tomichi Creek at Gunnison 
o Coal Creek above McCormick Ditch 
o Gunnison River at County Road 32 (National Water Quality Site) 
o Tomichi Creek below Cochetopa Creek 



3 

o Cebolla Creek at Powderhorn 
o East River at Almont 
o Gunnison River near Gunnison 

Other data collection activities include Taylor Park Reservoir – elevation and 
storage; Taylor River below Taylor Park Reservoir – precipitation; Lake Fork at 
Gateview – precipitation; Cochetopa Creek below Rock Creek – precipitation; 
and Taylor River at Almont – air temperature. 

They have completed 3 out of 6 sampling events for March, April, and May and 
will complete the other 3 during the coming months.  Maximum water 
temperature was recorded at the Ohio Creek near Gunnison gage where 
temperatures reached 72.5 degrees.  This was the highest recorded 
temperature at that site in twenty years.  Also, pH levels at Tomichi Creek at 
Gunnison were measured at 9.0 standard units (su) which is not unusual for 
this time of year. 

Trish said that the water quality data summary report has been updated 
through WY2019.  They are currently looking for an alternative display option 
for this information and once that is complete, subsequent year information 
will be included. 

NGWOS Updates 

The following information was provided or discussed: 

• Isotope sampling studies have been added to all existing monitoring sites 
and is being done by Carl Bern of USGS. There was discussion about 
possibly having him provide a presentation to local research scientists 
and UGRWCD Board and general public. 

• HAB sampling continues on Blue Mesa Reservoir with NPS. 
• Discussion about possibly re-establishing monitoring sites and doing a 

synoptic study on Cebolla Creek at Powderhorn to  isolate sources and 
trends in phosphorus loading.  

• USGS added specific conductance and water temperature to Taylor River 
at Taylor Park, East River at Almont, and Cimarron River. 
 

Local Water Quality Updates and Additional Monitoring Needs/Requests 

The US Forest Service has preliminary plans for future prescribed burns in the 
Taylor Park Basin (put on hold due to recent concerns over potential wildfire).  
Sonja asked if there was an opportunity to collect water quality data before and 
after prescribed burns which can have temporary effects on water quality and 
quantity.  Steve Anders said it may be good to speak with Suzanne Pashke 
about possibly including this type of data analysis in the NGWOS work.  Willow 
Creek is one of those areas and was identified as a high wildfire risk/high 
priority area for management. Steve indicated it might be a good idea to 
examine load above and below the burn areas.   

Sonja Chavez
I don't remember this being said. Can you please double check.



4 

• Ashley Bembenek provided an update on Coal Creek temporary 
modifications.  During the Regulation 35 hearing in June 2022, the 
Water Quality Control Commissions (WQCC) deleted the chronic copper 
and zinc temporary modifications applied to Coal Creek. 

• During the May 2021 Regulation 93 rulemaking, the Slate Rive between 
Coal Creek and the East River were removed from the 303(d) list for 
temperature.  This has important positive implications for the Town of 
Crested Butte’s wastewater treatment facility and is thanks to our 
program’s inclusion of temperature gages on these streams. 

• Ashley recommended flow and water-quality monitoring on Marshall 
Creek and Tomichi Creek downstream of Marshall Creek for uranium. 

• Ashley asked if it is possible to add dissolved organic carbon  sampling in 
the Upper Gunnison basin since DOC and other parameters will be used 
to calculate water quality standards for metals (aluminum and copper).  
We currently have DOC sampled four times per year at Coal Creel at 
McCormick and Taylor River at Taylor Park. She suggested perhaps 
prioritize streams with elevated aluminum and copper concentrations 
that are used as municipal water supply or that are tributary to 
municipal water supplies. 

• Conner Newman (NGWOS Team) is monitoring groundwater baseflow in 
the Upper Colorado River basin including the Upper Gunnison. 

• Sonja Chavez will provide information to the group about gages that were 
installed by Dave Gochis in his work in the Taylor River basin. 

• Sonja informed the group that the District has been hearing a lot from 
the public that they are concerned with algal growth happening in our 
rivers. Trish was not seeing anything alarming in the data but suggested 
that perhaps she take a closer look at trends. 

Action Items 

• Staff will follow up with Carl Bern about isotopic data and invite him to 
present data to WQMP, DOE, LBNL, etc., and possibly the Upper 
Gunnison board / general public. 

• USGS will evaluate monitoring recommendations along with draft cost 
estimates and advise the group after discussing with Sonja 

• USGS suggested that if we could take samples of the algae that perhaps 
Katie could analyze. 

• Sonja will get information about additional stream gages installed by 
Dave Gochis (UCAR). 

• Staff will provide a copy of the vegetation management plan developed by 
the Forest Service to determine if there is an opportunity for 
incorporating water quality/quantity monitoring. 

• Staff discuss monitoring of uranium on Marshall Creek and Tomichi 
Creek with the County and then communicate with Homestake Mine to 
determine if they are interested in cooperating.  



5 

• Staff will contact Forest Service to see if there is anything they can do to 
speed up permitting of additional SNOTEL sites in the basin. Garrett 
with NAWC to determine best locations for additional SNOTEL sites 

• USGS will follow-up on sampling on Cebolla Creek.  There are three 
inactive gage sites that could be reactivated: Cebolla near Lake City, 
Cebolla near Powderhorn, and Spring Creek at Cebolla. 
 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:30 p.m. 

 

 

Sonja Chavez
Bev - I don't remember this statement. Can you check?  Thx.



1 
220810 Summary WMP Committee_final 

MINUTES 
 

TO:   Watershed Management Planning Committee 
 
FROM:  Beverly Richards (Water Resource Specialist); Sonja Chavez (General Manager) 
 
DATE:  August 10, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Watershed Management Planning Committee Meeting 

 
A meeting of the committee was held on August 10, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. 
 
Stacy McPhail, Jesse Kruthaupt (TU), Nancy Johnston-Bramlett (CTU), Chris Sturm (CWCB), Mike Tarantino 
(CSFS),  and UGRWCD Staff: Sonja Chavez, Beverly Richards, Cheryl Cwelich, Jill Steele, and Sue Uerling 
were in attendance.  
 
Agenda topics included an in-depth discussion of draft assessments provided by JW Associates, update on 
improvements at the Gunnison White Water Park, Drought Contingency Planning funding (Reclamation), and 
CWCB WMP purchase order status.    
 
As a result of these discussions the following action and discussion items were identified. 
 
Action and Discussion Items: 
 

• Cheryl Cwelich will continue to provide updates on the Gunnison White Water Park improvements. 
• Sonja Chavez will continue to work on the development of the third purchase order from CWCB for the 

watershed management/stream management planning process.  This could include implementation of 
projects for pre-fire and post-fire mitigation of wildfire hazards identified in assessment. 

• Sonja Chavez will speak with David Gochis about the possibility of conducting hydrology and hydraulic 
modeling in the Taylor River in order to begin process of identifying high priority areas for wildfire 
mitigation. 

• Sonja Chavez will talk to USGS the possibility of NGWOS partnership in identified zones of concern in 
the Taylor River basin and Wet Meadow Base Flow Study. 

• UGRWCD & WMP Committee input into draft assessment documents will be provided to JW 
Associates for inclusion in reports. 

• Upon completion of geo-morphological assessments, staff and committee members will review and 
update list of values and concerns to ensure we are meeting assessment goals. 

• Sonja Chavez will coordinate engineering services with NRCS where consistent with UGRWCD goals 
and mission to continue to move projects forward within our District boundary (Note: Montrose/Delta 
NRCS Office lost their only remaining engineer). 

• Staff will continue to provide updates to committee regarding status of ongoing assessment in the basin. 
 

Next Meeting 
 
Watershed Management Planning Committee – September 14, 2022  – 1:30 p.m.   
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:24 p.m. 
 



1 
220811 Summary Education Committee_final 

 
MINUTES 

 
TO:   UGRWCD Education & Outreach Committee 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards (Water Resource Specialist); Sue Uerling (Administrative 

Assistant / Communications Support Specialist) 
 
DATE:  August 11, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Education and Outreach Committee Meeting 

 
A meeting of the Education and Outreach Committee was held on August 11, 2022, at 1:00 p.m. 
 
Stacy McPhail, Sara Bergstrom, Bill Nesbitt, Sonja Chavez, Beverly Richards, Cheryl Cwelich, and Sue 
Uerling were in attendance. Rosemary Carroll attended by remote video conference. 
 
Agenda topics included review of 2022 education and outreach action plan, and discussion of the 
proposed 2023 action plan.  As a result of these discussions the following action and discussion items 
were identified: 
 
Action and Discussion Items 
 

• Staff will create a calendar of events consistent with the action plan 
• Staff will create a 1-to-2-page fact sheet about water in the basin.  This can be distributed in real 

estate closing packets to inform public 
• Sonja Chavez will speak with John McClow about preparing a Water Law 101 Program 

presentation and his willingness to give as part of our community educational programs. 
• Stacy will speak to Eric McPhail about UGRWCD potential participation in rural landowner days. 
• Sonja Chavez will provide the link to the wet meadows study done in New Mexico. 

 
Bill Nesbitt moved and Stacy McPhail seconded the approval of the 2023 action plan as presented.  
The amount was $59,930 for the 2023 budget.  The motion carried. 
 
Next Meeting: TBD 
 
Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 2:31 p.m. 
 
 
Following the meeting, staff received cost estimates from: (a) Molly Childerston for the 8th Grade Taylor 
Challenge water sampling supplies; (b) Renee Brekke for the middle school science programming to 
create a pollinator garden next to the middle school pond; (c) Krystal Brown for the Gunnison High 
School science Program (creation of a weather station); and (d) Krystal Brown for students to attend the 
6th Global UN Mountain Partnership Conference September 26-29, 2022 in Aspen.  The total amount of 
these requests is $3,411 of which $2,110 will be reallocated from line items in the 2022 action plan that 
were not or will not be used, leaving an unallocated fund balance of $2,120. 



 

 

MINUTES 
Taylor Local Users Group 

August 9, 2022 – Draft v.08-10-22 for TLUG Review 
 
TLUG Attendees: 
     TLUG Representatives Present: 

Don Sabrowski (Chair) 
Roark Kiklevich (Wade Fishing) 
Mark Schumacher (Whitewater Boating) 
Ernie Cockrell (Taylor Placer; by Zoom) 
Ryan Birdsey (Flatwater Recreation; by Zoom) 
Andy Spann (Agricultural: by Zoom) 

 
TLUG Representatives Absent: 

 Pete Dunda (Property Owners)       
 
Others in person: 

Beverly Richards- UGRWCD 
Sue Uerling – UGRWCD 
Keith Hegarty - Wilder on the Taylor Homeowner 
Dustin Brown – Scenic River Tours 
Bill Gallenbeck – Taylor Dam Outlet Operations 
Dave Gochis - UCAR 

 
By Zoom: 

Erik Knight – BOR 
John Bocchino – Riffle and Rise LLC 
Jill Steele - UGRWCD 
Steve Pope - UVWUA 
 

I. Introductions & Approval of Minutes 
 

Minutes: Chairman Sabrowski asked if there were any changes to the minutes.  There were no 
corrections identified. Mark Schumacher moved, and Roark Kiklevich seconded a motion to 
approve the minutes as presented. The motion passed. 

 
II. UCAR WRF Hydro Model Forecast: Dave Gochis provided an update from the University of Colorado 

Atmospheric Research (UCAR).  For the April-July timeframe the WRF-Hydro model forecasts the 
total runoff to be approximately 72,000 acre-feet.  They did notice that the Taylor River tributaries 
above the reservoir accounted for 61 percent of the total runoff, however, this was less than some 
years. 
 
The summer runoff was less than normal, and this is likely due to soil moisture content which 
affected the runoff yield.  In the timeframe for April-September the model is showing 83,900 acre-



 

feet of runoff which is about 12,000 acre-feet more than the Colorado River Basin Forecast Center, 
but he did state that the model is over-estimating in terms of summer runoff. 
 

III. CBRFC Water Supply Update and USBR Model Forecast: Erik Knight presented the August 1 CBRFC 
forecast.  This forecast showed that the runoff for  the timeframe of April – July was 72,000 acre-
feet which is 77% of average.  The max fill for the reservoir was 80,923 acre-feet or an elevation of 
9316.6.  The end-of-year content is forecasted to be 69,300 acre-feet and this involves flows of 230 
cfs the first two weeks in August, a decrease on August 16th to 200 cfs, and then a ramping down 
beginning after Labor Day to 100 cfs by the middle of September.  The winter flow beginning in 
October will be 84 cfs if the end-of-year content is above 69,000 acre-feet, or 83 cfs if the content is 
above 68,000 acre-feet.  Erik also stated that there is 80-85% chance that the reservoir will fill next 
year if regular conditions exist. 
 
Question: Ernie Cockrell asked how the ramping down from 200 to 100 cfs will occur.  Erik said it is 
scheduled to begin on September 7th and will be reduced in increments of 25 cfs per day to be 
completed by September 11th. 
 

IV. Flow Recommendation Discussion Summary:  
 
Mark Schumacher said he would like to see the releases remain at 230 cfs at least through Labor 
Day and he asked Erik to calculate.  Andy Spann agreed that leaving the releases at 230 cfs would 
benefit the boaters, outfitters, and agricultural users.  Based on the calculations for the release 
being reduced to 200 cfs beginning September 7th, there would be just above 68,000 acre-feet at the 
end of the year.   
 
Mark suggested that the reduction in flows should begin on September 5th rather than the 7th.  The 
calculation, based on this recommendation, puts the end of year content at 68,500 cfs.  As with the 
original plan, the ramping down to 100 cfs will be completed in a 4-day timeframe.  Andy Spann, 
Ernie Cockrell, Roark Kiklevich, and Ryan Birdsey all agreed with this recommendation. 
 
Per group consensus, Erik Knight will provide the August 15th forecast as soon as it is available.  The 
group would like Sonja to provide this information to them via email in order to decide if an 
additional meeting is necessary, or if changes need to be made. 
 

V. Miscellaneous Updates and Next Meeting:  
 
No miscellaneous updates were provided. 

 
Next meeting set for September 8 at 10:00 am (hybrid meeting). 

 
Meeting adjourned at 11:28 AM. 
 
Attachments: August 1, 2022, Taylor River Forecast and Operations 

 



NOTE TO FILE 

Taylor Local Users Group 
August 17, 2022 

 
Consistent with recommendations from the August 9th, 2022, meeting, UGRWCD General 

Manager, Sonja Chavez was asked to provide the TLUG with the August 15th forecast from Erik 

Knight as soon as it became available so that the group could decide if an additional meeting was 

necessary to adjust the current 230 cfs Taylor Reservoir release. 

Following is the communication received from Erik Knight on August 17th, 2022: 

From: Knight, Erik L <EKnight@usbr.gov>  

Sent: Wednesday, August 17, 2022 11:57 AM 

To: Sonja Chavez <schavez@ugrwcd.org> 

Subject: Re: Taylor Park August update 

Hi Sonja 

The forecast for August inflows into Taylor Park Reservoir is looking pretty good.  

Using the 10 day flow forecast from CBRFC indicates the August inflow volume would end 

up around 8,000 AF.  This is higher than the monthly forecast for 7,000 AF. Sometimes these 

2 forecast products do not jive with each other, but CBRFC has said that the daily flow 

forecasts should be better than the volumetric forecasts for short-term hydrology. If the 

forecasted rains fail we may end up closer to the 7,000 AF number for August. 

Using the 8,000 AF assumption for August inflows puts the reservoir content at 68,700 AF 

on Oct 31, while maintaining a 230 cfs release until Sept 5th. So that's the buffer we are 

working with. 

I'm out of town until next Tuesday, but I think we are good for now. 

Erik Knight 

970-248-0629 

WCAO-GJ 

 
 

Based on the above information, Sonja emailed the TLUG on the August 17th to let them know 

that based upon Erik’s email and TLUG direction given on August 9th meeting, it would not be 

necessary to meet again in August as hydrology and the inflow forecast had actually improved. 

The TLUG could continue the 230 cfs release through September 5th as planned. Sonja indicated 

she would put a reminder in her calendar to touch base with Erik when he returns to see if he can 

give another 10-day inflow forecast. If hydrology should tank and the TLUG need to meet 

sooner, she will contact representatives immediately to schedule a Zoom meeting. Otherwise, the 

next scheduled meeting is September 8th at 10:00 a.m. (hybrid). 



October November December January February March April May June July August September
October  4,500           4,400           3,600          

Mid October 4,600           4,000           3,600          
November  4,900           3,900           3,500           3,200          

Mid November 4,900           4,100           3,600           3,300          
December  4,900           4,300           3,600           3,400           2,800          

Mid December 4,900           4,300           3,600           3,400           2,800           Most % of Avg Min % of Avg Max % of Avg AVG
January  4,900           4,300           4,500           3,400           3,100           3,500           98,000     104% 74,000    79% 152,000   162% 94,000    

Mid January 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,100           3,500           105,000   112% 85,000    90% 160,000   170% 94,000    
February  4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,200           3,500           7,000           100,000   106% 79,000    84% 146,000   155% 94,000    

Mid February 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,400           3,500           7,000           27,000         42,000         17,000         93,000     99% 77,000    82% 137,000   146% 94,000    
March  4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           3,800           7,000           28,000         43,000         18,000         96,000     102% 79,000    84% 116,000   123% 94,000    

Mid March 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           3,900           7,000           30,000         46,000         17,000         100,000   106% 82,000    87% 120,000   128% 94,000    
April  4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,500           30,000         42,000         16,500         96,000     102% 79,000    84% 120,000   128% 94,000    

Mid April 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,200           25,000         41,000         16,800         90,000     96% 79,000    84% 115,000   122% 94,000    
May  4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         40,000         15,100         90,000     96% 79,000    84% 107,000   114% 94,000    

Mid May 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           32,000         34,000         13,000         87,000     93% 77,000    82% 105,000   112% 94,000    
June  4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         33,000         12,200         80,000     85% 73,000    78% 93,000     99% 94,000    

Mid June 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         31,000         11,200         8,000           77,000     82% 72,000    77% 83,000     88% 94,000    
July  4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         25,800         12,200         7,500           5,500           73,000     78% 72,000    77% 77,000     82% 94,000    

Mid July 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         25,800         11,200         7,000           5,500           72,000     77% 71,000    76% 75,000     80% 94,000    
August  4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         25,800         11,300         7,000           5,500           72,000     77%

Mid August 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         25,800         11,300        
September  4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         25,800         11,300        

Mid September 4,900           4,300           4,500           4,000           3,500           4,100           7,900           27,000         25,800         11,300        

WY2022 CBRFC ‐ Taylor Park Reservoir Most, Max and Min Inflow Forecasts (acre‐feet)
CBRFC Forecast 

Issued
Monthly Inflow Volume Forecast (Acre‐Feet)

April ‐ July Forecasts

Final April‐July Inflow
72,000  af

 ‐

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

 100,000

 120,000

 140,000

 160,000

 180,000

January Mid January February Mid February March Mid March April Mid April May Mid May June Mid June July Mid July

Fo
re
ca
st
ed

 A
pr
il 
‐J
ul
y 
In
flo

w
 V
ol
um

e 
(a
cr
e‐
fe
et
)

Official CBRFC Bi‐Monthly Forecast

Forecasted April ‐ July Inflow Volumes

Minimum Probable Most Probable Maximum Probable 30‐yr Average



30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

55000

60000

65000

70000

75000

80000

85000

90000

95000

100000

105000

110000

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

Ap
r‐
01

Ap
r‐
08

Ap
r‐
15

Ap
r‐
22

Ap
r‐
29

M
ay
‐0
6

M
ay
‐1
3

M
ay
‐2
0

M
ay
‐2
7

Ju
n‐
03

Ju
n‐
10

Ju
n‐
17

Ju
n‐
24

Ju
l‐0

1

Ju
l‐0

8

Ju
l‐1

5

Ju
l‐2

2

Ju
l‐2

9

Au
g‐
05

Au
g‐
12

Au
g‐
19

Au
g‐
26

Se
p‐
02

Se
p‐
09

Se
p‐
16

Se
p‐
23

Se
p‐
30

O
ct
‐0
7

O
ct
‐1
4

O
ct
‐2
1

O
ct
‐2
8

Co
nt
en

t (
AF

)

Re
le
as
e 
(c
fs
)

Taylor Park Operations

Inflow Release Content

80923 AF

9316.62 Ft

Max Fill

FULL RESERVOIR



Proposed Operation 
Taylor Park Reservoir

Aug 1st forecast = 77% (72,000) af
August 9, 2022

Average Average EOM EOM
Inflow Inflow Outflow Outflow Content Elevation

Month ac-ft cfs ac-ft cfs ac-ft ft

58,892
Nov 1-15 2,320 78 2,230 75 58,982 9302.74
Nov 16-30 2,000 67 2,240 75 58,742 9302.57

Dec 1-15 1,930 65 2,210 74 58,462 9302.38
Dec 16-31 2,590 82 2,350 74 58,702 9302.55

Jan 1-15 1,920 65 2,020 68 58,602 9302.48
Jan 16-31 1,880 59 2,140 67 58,342 9302.30

Feb 1-15 1,560 56 1,900 68 58,002 9302.06
Feb 16-28 1,690 61 1,930 70 57,762 9301.88

Mar 1-15 1,830 62 2,050 69 57,542 9301.72
Mar 16-31 1,990 63 2,210 70 57,322 9301.56

Apr 1-15 2,440 82 2,160 73 57,602 9301.76
Apr 16-30 5,390 181 3,750 126 59,242 9302.92

May 1-15 10,110 340 4,140 139 65,212 9306.97
May 16-31 16,830 530 7,990 252 74,052 9312.57

Jun 1-15 15,790 531 10,810 363 79,032 9315.53
Jun 16-30 10,060 338 8,160 274 80,932 9316.63

Jul 1-15 6,690 225 7,770 261 79,852 9316.01
Jul 16-31 4,580 144 7,670 242 76,762 9314.20

Aug 1-15 4,640 156 6,820 229 74,582 9312.89
Aug 16-31 3,250 102 6,350 200 71,482 9311.00

Sep 1-15 2,480 83 4,660 157 69,302 9309.63
Sep 16-30 3,020 102 2,980 100 69,342 9309.65

Oct 1-15 2,840 95 2,980 100 69,202 9309.56
Oct 16-31 2,760 87 2,700 85 69,262 9309.60

71,890  = April-July inflow
76%  of normal

80,923  = Maximum Content

preliminary



OCT 2020 4,390              69% 5,390              88 47% 68,392             99% 9309.05

NOV 2020 4,140              85% 4,940              83 76% 67,453             102% 9308.45

DEC 2020 3,940              87% 5,040              82 92% 66,353             99% 9307.72

JAN 2021 3,740              86% 5,030              82 102% 65,063             98% 9306.88

FEB 2021 3,470              92% 4,830              87 109% 63,703             97% 9305.97

MAR 2021 3,830              87% 5,460              89 84% 62,073             98% 9304.88

APR 2021 6,810              81% 5,260              88 52% 63,623             101% 9305.92

MAY 2021 16,070            60% 9,600              156 68% 70,093             91% 9310.13

JUN 2021 23,630            57% 15,820            266 79% 77,903             76% 9314.87

JUL 2021 10,960            56% 16,450            268 70% 72,413             75% 9311.57

AUG 2021 6,890              70% 15,050            245 79% 64,253             76% 9306.35

SEP 2021 3,880              56% 9,550              160 55% 58,583             82% 9302.46

OCT 2021 4,570              71% 4,620              75 40% 58,892             85% 9302.69

TOTALS 91,930            65% 101,650          140 71%

Apr-Jul 57,470            60% 47,130            70%

WY 2022

NOV 2021 4,320              89% 4,470              75 69% 58,742             89% 9302.57

DEC 2021 4,520              100% 4,560              74 83% 58,702             88% 9302.55

JAN 2022 3,800              87% 4,160              68 85% 58,342             88% 9302.30

FEB 2022 3,250              86% 3,830              69 87% 57,762             88% 9301.88

MAR 2022 3,820              87% 4,260              69 65% 57,322             90% 9301.56

APR 2022 7,830              93% 5,910              99 59% 59,242             94% 9302.92

MAY 2022 26,940            100% 12,130            197 86% 74,052             96% 9312.57

JUN 2022 25,850            63% 18,970            319 95% 80,932             79% 9316.63

JUL 2022 11,270            57% 15,440            251 66% 76,762             79% 9314.20

AUG 2022 7,890              80% 13,170            214 69% 71,482             84% 9311.00

SEP 2022 5,500              79% 7,640              128 44% 69,342             97% 9309.65

OCT 2022 5,600              88% 5,680              92 50% 69,262             100% 9309.60

TOTALS 110,590          78% 100,220          138 70%

Apr-Jul 71,890            75% 52,450            78%

WY 2023

NOV 2022 4,500              93% 5,100              85                    78% 68,700             104% 9309.25

DEC 2022 4,100              91% 5,200              85                    95% 67,600             101% 9308.54

JAN 2023 4,400              101% 5,200              85                    106% 66,800             100% 9308.03

FEB 2023 3,800              100% 4,700              85                    106% 65,900             101% 9307.43

MAR 2023 4,400              101% 5,200              85                    80% 65,100             102% 9306.90

APR 2023 8,400              100% 9,500              160 94% 64,000             101% 9306.18

MAY 2023 27,000            101% 13,000            211 92% 78,000             101% 9314.93

JUN 2023 42,000            102% 17,500            294 87% 102,500           100% 9328.15

JUL 2023 20,000            102% 23,500            382 101% 99,000             102% 9326.38

AUG 2023 10,000            102% 22,000            358 116% 87,000             102% 9320.03

SEP 2023 7,000              100% 18,000            302 104% 76,000             106% 9313.74

OCT 2023 6,500              102% 12,500            203 109% 70,000             101% 9310.07

NOV 2023 5,000              103% 5,050              85 78% 69,950             106% 9310.04

DEC 2023 4,500              100% 5,250              85 96% 69,200             104% 9309.56

TOTALS 142,100          101% 141,400          195 99%

Apr-Jul 97,400            101% 63,500            94%

TAYLOR PARK RESERVOIR - WY2022 - ANNUAL OPERATING PLAN MONTHLY SUMMARY
MOST PROBABLE INFLOW

Timestep 
(Month)

Inflow 
Volume (Acre-

Ft)

% of 
Average 

Inflow

Reservoir 
Release 

Volume (Acre-
Ft)

Average 
Monthly 

Reservoir 
Release 
(CFS)

% of Average 
Reservoir 
Release

End of Month 
Reservoir Live 
Storage (Acre-

Ft)

% of 
Average 

Live 
Storage

End of 
Month 

Reservoir 
Elevation



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

In
flo

w
 (c
fs
)
Taylor Park Inflows

% Exceedence ‐ Historical Inflows

10% 25% 50% 75% 90% 2022 Forecast Inflows



 

1 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_08.16.22 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  UGRWCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator 

DATE: August 19, 2022  

SUBJECT: Wet Meadows Program Update (August) 

 
During the month of August, the following activities have commenced or been completed in the 

Gunnison Basin Wet Meadows & Riparian Restoration Collaborative (GBWMRRC): 

 

Notable Activities Completed or in Progress: 

• Monson Gulch Water Right Dispute:  

To respect the concerns and demands of the downstream water right on Monson Creek, 

BLM representatives and District staff breached all twenty-two wicker weirs and 

redesigned two rock structures to minimize water spreading and keep flows running 

through the ditch. The BLM will install four flumes along the reach in question to 

monitor water flows through Monson Creek.  

• Taylor AMG Field Tour:  

Information was provided on tools to combat wildfire, including - prescribed burns, fuels 

reduction, wildlife impacts and watershed considerations. Debris flows are more common 

in high-intensity wildfires, whereas they are decreased in prescribed burn areas. If pre- 

and post- wildfire water quality sampling is desired and funding is available, Jonathan 

Coop, Director of MS of Ecology and Professor of Environment & Sustainability, is 

willing to collaborate with the District on creating a project.  

 

Other Activities Completed or in Progress: 

• 2022 Construction: Completed restoration structure building at: 

o Mountain Island Ranch (CPW) 

o Pinecrest Ranch (Ute Mountain Ute)  

• Research:  

o Started conversations with United States Geological Survey (USGS) about 

conducting a paired watershed study to demonstrate improved base flows and an 



 

2 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_08.16.22 

increase in overall streamflow due to wet meadows & riparian restoration erosion 

control structures. 

• Grant Opportunities:  

o Submitted grant application of $17,250 to GOCO for the Western Colorado 

Conservation Corp (WCCC) to assist with restoration work on Razor Creek and 

Horn Gulch in 2023.  

o Awaiting final grant award announcement for the “America the Beautiful” grant 

of $100,000 for wetland assessment, to be announced in November 2022.  

o The Program was not awarded Congressional Directed Spending (CDS). The 

North American Grasslands Act, introduced by Senator Bennet had similar 

language and if passed, could provide funding for grasslands and sagebrush 

ecosystems.   

• Outreach:  

o Plans are being finalized for the season’s big volunteer event with Wildlands 

Restoration Volunteers (WRV) and High Country Conservation Advocates 

(HCCA) over Labor Day weekend (September 2nd – 5th). 

o Students from Western Colorado University (WCU) will be assisting with an 

educational workshop on restoration practices at Wolf Creek on September 13th.  

 



AGENDA ITEM 9
Scientific Endeavors



AGENDA ITEM 9
STOR Committee Update



AGENDA ITEM 9
CO Water Congress Conference Summary



AGENDA ITEM 10
Miscellaneous Matters



����������	
�����������������
������������
��������� !�"#$����%�&' (�'�)&*�'�&+�,�-������
.�-�
��������/��01�����,2�3���/�������4
����56�����7�8�����9
���:��-
���;!� *�$�%�&(�$��(!<#' �!��=&>!( ?��@3A�1����
�B�3CD������-
���-�
����������/��-�
�1���
��	
��51/1��7E&&F �&�F��!G&( %�&(�$��(!<#'&<�����������H����������� I7JK�L@ �M��L@������������H�����N����� I7J��L@ �JI�L@�����I������H����������� I7J��L@ I�7I�L@������������H����������� ��@ ��@�����J������H����K������ ��@ ��@�51/1��������D
��O M�M�L@�P����
1��9
����D
��O �7�N�9@�Q�����
�A���O �7���9@�8�	���6��P�
�1���
�O KK7M�9@�Q
1��R�("!��STTU& �	
�������6
���O�JN�7��������������V�Q
1������
		���������01�������
	O�W�X(&&U
Y(!GU&(��! �U#>>!( &<?���9���
�
	��,�/�B��

/��3��
6�B�Z���	
[�
��\�	�����
������������	�������.�

L�
	�9�,�-�����.���������[�����/���.�	���1���7]̂ _�̀ab�cb



8 <---- Month to Summarize (change this number to look at a different month)

PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO REVISION

Daily Summary for Month --> Aug

1st Fill  2nd Fill  Other Aspinall BP Accnt AU Accnt 1st Fill Contract Tot 1st fill

Day of 
Month

Silver Jack 
Reservoir & 
Juniors In 

Priority 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

TP 
Releases 
from TP 
1st Fill 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

Excess 
Released 
TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

Gun 
Tunnel 
(GT) 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat 
Inflow 

and TP 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day 
Average 
Excess 

TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day Ave. 
GT 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat Inflow 
and TP 
Inflow    
(cfs)

TP Res. 
Content 

(af)

TP - 
USGS 
outflow 

(cfs)

TP 
Compute
d Inflow 

(cfs)

1st Fill - 
Storage -

in TP 
(af)

2nd Fill -
Storage 
- in TP 

(af)

Other 
Account 
Storage 
in TP - 
Storage 

- (af)

AU 
Storag
e in TP 
- (af)

SJ Res 
Content 

(af)

SJ Inflow 
to 

Reservoir 
Storage 

(cfs)

BP - 
Storage - 
in SJ (af)

AU 
Water - 

Storage - 
in SJ (af)

BM Res 
Content 

(af)

MP Res 
Content 

(af)

CR Res 
Content 

(af)

AU 
Change 

In 
Storage 

(af)

Computed 
rel from 
CR (cfs)

AU inflow 
below TP 

& with 
AU Aug 
Rel (cfs) #REF!

UGRWC
D 

Contract 
water     
(af)

Gun. 
River 
below 
East 

Portal    
(cfs)

Total 
Gunnison 

Tunnel 
Divs (cfs)

GT Divs - 
AU inflow 
minus TP 
released 

inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
TP 

Released 
Inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
SJ 

Storage 
Inflow by 
AU Exch 

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
UGRWC

D 
Contract 
Water 

Rel    
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
Rel from 
2nd Fill 

for 
Rec/Fish  

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
1st Fill 

Credit in 
BM     
(cfs) #REF!

Remain. 
1st Fill 

Credits in 
TP and 

AU      
(af)

(1) (2) (3) (5) (6) (7) (8) (11) (14) (15) (19) (25) (30) (34) (36) (39) (43) (47) (49) (77) (100) (124) (125) (127) #REF! #REF! (128) (131) (132) (133) (134) (135) (136) (137) #REF! (140)

1 1 1     76,585 229 161     8,989 0 8,989 0  110,847 15,270  1,632    546 1,086   0 0     
2 1 1     76,552 229 221     8,978 0 8,978 0  110,744 15,100  1,630    544 1,086   0 0     
3 1 1     76,433 229 178     8,881 0 8,881 0  111,020 14,875  1,631    545 1,086   0 0     
4 1 1     76,266 229 154     8,837 0 8,837 0  110,973 14,759  1,631    545 1,086   0 0     
5 1 1     76,099 230 155     8,761 0 8,761 0 365,766 110,957 14,930  1,610    545 1,065   0 0     
6 1 1     75,932 229 154     8,663 0 8,663 0  111,035 14,751  1,586    545 1,041   0 0     
7 1 1     75,698 229 120     8,542 0 8,542 0  110,752 15,044  1,589    546 1,043   0 0     
8 1 1     75,481 229 128     8,412 0 8,412 0  110,736 15,357  1,592    546 1,046   0 0     
9 1 1     75,213 229 103     8,269 0 8,269 0  110,681 15,351  1,594    546 1,048   0 0     

10 1 1     74,946 231 105     8,115 0 8,115 0  110,149 15,897  1,597    546 1,051   0 0     
11 1 1     74,680 232 107     7,968 0 7,968 0  110,391 16,258  1,603    549 1,054   0 0     
12 1 1     74,433 232 116     7,814 0 7,814 0  110,603 16,330  1,611    547 1,064   0 0     
13 1 1     74,153 231 99     7,665 0 7,665 0  110,603 16,423  1,611    547 1,064   0 0     
14 1 1     73,873 231 99     7,504 0 7,504 0  110,752 16,362  1,612    548 1,064   0 0     
15 1 1     73,593 231 99     7,388 0 7,388 0  110,776 16,371  1,623    549 1,074   0 0     
16 1 1     73,477 231 182     7,278 0 7,278 0  111,083 16,377  1,622    549 1,073   0 0     
17 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
18 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
19 1 1 0   0  
20 1 1 0   0  
21 1 1 0   0  
22 1 1 0   0  
23 1 1 0   0  
24 1 1 0   0  
25 1 1 0   0  
26 1 1 0   0  
27 1 1 0   0  
28 1 1 0   0  
29 1 1 0   0  
30 1 1 0   0  
31 1 1 0   0  

Total 31 31 0 0 0 0 3,681 2,178 0 0 25,772 0 8,743 17,029 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tot (af) 0 0 0 0 7,301 4,320 0 0 51,118 0 17,342 33,777 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 1 1 0 0 0 0 73,477 0 99 0 0 0 0 7,278 0 7,278 0 365,766 110,149 14,751 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Max 1 1 0 0 0 0 76,585 232 221 0 0 0 0 8,989 0 8,989 0 365,766 111,083 16,423 0 1,632 0 0 0 549 1,086 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Annual Summary (all values in ac-ft)  Note: Reservoir content is the end of the month content 
(days) (days) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af)

Nov 30 30     58,737 4,470 4,632     1,713 300 1,713 0  110,430 15,977  20,025   19,420 604   0     
Dec 31 31     58,695 4,564 4,521     1,790 166 1,790 0 231,059 105,687 16,102  20,080   18,851 1,229   0     
Jan 31 31     58,327 4,412 4,043     1,880 90 1,880 0 236,731 104,652 16,186  19,520   18,453 1,067   0     
Feb 28 28     57,749 4,096 3,518     1,870 10 1,870 0  105,444 15,052  17,228   16,989 239   0     
Mar 31 31     57,303 4,581 4,135     1,977 107 1,977 0  108,948 16,820  32,745   24,617 8,128   0     
Apr 30 30     59,219 5,945 7,861     4,629 2,652 4,629 0  111,643 16,753  54,717   23,481 31,237   0     
May 31 31     74,021 11,966 26,989     13,147 8,806 13,147 0  110,673 16,481  107,604   48,437 59,167   0     
Jun 30 30     80,852 18,929 26,111     12,428 127 12,428 0  109,718 16,853  82,474   20,811 61,663   0     
Jul 31 31     76,738 15,449 11,809     9,065 0 9,065 0  110,870 15,418  92,489   27,589 64,900   0     
Aug 31 31     7,301    51,118   17,342 33,777       
Sep 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Oct 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Total 365 365 0 0 0 0 81,712 93,620 12,257 0 498,000 0 235,989 262,011 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 28 28 0 0 0 0 57,303 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,790 0 1,790 0 231,059 104,652 15,052 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Max 31 31 0 0 0 0 80,852 18,929 26,989 0 0 0 0 13,147 8,806 13,147 0 236,731 111,643 16,853 0 107,604 0 0 48,437 64,900 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Type of Water Diverted into Tunnel

TO

Taylor Park Reservoir Aspinall Unit GUNNISON TUNNEL ALLOCATION
River Call Average Flow Reservoir

Silver Jack Reservoir
Reservoir Reservoir Contents Total Aspinall Unit Inflow Streamflow and Divs

























































































AGENDA ITEM 11
Citizen Comments



AGENDA ITEM 12
Future Meetings



FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENTS

 Labor Day Holiday - Offices Closed - September 5, 2022
 TLUG Meeting - September 8, 2022 at 10 AM
 Sonja receives WECO's "Emerging Leader Award" - September 8, 2022 at 

6 PM at Balesteri Vineyards, Denver
 Watershed Management Planning Meeting - September 14, 2022 at 1:30 

PM
 Gunnison Basin Roundtable Meeting - September 19, 2022 at 3 PM
 UGRWCD Board Meeting - September 26, 2022 at 5:30 PM - LOCATION 

TO BE ANNOUNCED
 Watershed Management Planning Meeting - October 12, 2022 at 1:30 

PM
 UGRWCD Board Meeting - October 24, 2022 at 5:30 PM

  



AGENDA ITEM 13
Summary of Action Items



AGENDA ITEM 14
Adjournment


	Agenda - August 29, 2022
	Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of July 25, 2022 Minutes
	Monthly Budget Summary
	Consideration of Expenses

	Agenda Item 4 - 2023 Budget
	Discussion of Goals and Activities for 2023
	Preliminary Estimate of Asessor's Valuations

	Agenda Item 5 - Presentation by Chris Sturm of the CWCB, "Wildfire Ready Watershed"
	Agenda Item 6 - BREAK
	Agenda Item 7 - Legal and Legislative Matters
	Agenda Item 8 - Basin Water Supply
	Agenda Item 9 - General Manager and Committee Reports
	Treasurer's Report
	Executive Committee Meetng Update - July 27, 2022
	General Manager's Update Miscellaneous
	Grant Commitee Update - Jesse Kruthaupt Presentation on Vouga Reservoir dam repairs
	Watershed Management Planning Update - August 10, 2022
	Education and Outreach Update - August 11, 2022
	Taylor Local User's Group Update 
	August 9, 2022 Meeting

	Wet Meadows Program Update
	Scientific Endeavors
	STOR Update
	CO Water Congress Summary

	Agenda Item 10 - Miscellaneous Matters
	Gunnison Energy Production Report - Solar Panels
	Current Gunnison River Spreadshet
	Newspaper Articles and Other Water News

	Agenda Item 11 - Citizens Comments
	Agenda Item 12 - Future Meetings
	Agenda Item 13 - Summary of Meeting Action Items
	Agenda Item 14- Adjournment



